When telephoning, please ask for: Tracey Coop

Direct dial 0115914 8511

Email democraticservices@rushcliffe.gov.uk
Our reference:

Your reference:

Date: Wednesday, 1 February 2023

To all Members of the Planning Committee

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Thursday, 9 February
2023 at 2.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West
Bridgford to consider the following items of business.

This meeting will be accessible and open to the public via the live stream on
YouTube and viewed via the link: https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC
Please be aware that until the meeting starts the live stream video will not be
showing on the home page. For this reason, please keep refreshing the home
page until you see the video appear.

Yours sincerely

Sy

Gemma Dennis
Monitoring Officer

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence and Substitute Members
2. Declarations of Interest

a) Under the Code of Conduct

b) Under the Planning Code
3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 January 2023 (Pages 1 - 8)
4. Planning Applications (Pages 9 - 30)

The Report of the Director for Development and Economic Growth
5. Planning Appeals (Pages 31 - 32)

The report of the Director for Development and Economic Growth

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Rushcliffe Borough
Council Customer
Service Centre

Fountain Court
Gordon Road
West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG2 5LN

Email:
customerservices
@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Telephone:
0115981 9911

www.rushcliffe.gov.uk

Opening hours:
Monday, Tuesday and
Thursday

8.30am - 5pm
Wednesday

9.30am - 5pm

Friday

8.30am - 4.30pm

Postal address
Rushcliffe Borough
Council

Rushcliffe Arena
Rugby Road

West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG27YG

M2 disability
A confident

EMPLOYER ——

RUSHCLIFFE - GREAT PLACE = GREAT LIFESTYLE = GREAT SPORT


https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC

Membership

Chairman: Councillor R Butler

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Mrs M Stockwood

Councillors: B Bansal, S Bailey, N Clarke, L Healy, D Mason, F Purdue-Horan,
V Price, C Thomas and J Walker

Meeting Room Guidance

Fire Alarm Evacuation: in the event of an alarm sounding please evacuate the
building using the nearest fire exit, normally through the Council Chamber. You
should assemble at the far side of the plaza outside the main entrance to the
building.

Toilets: are located to the rear of the building near the lift and stairs to the first
floor.

Mobile Phones: For the benefit of others please ensure that your mobile phone is
switched off whilst you are in the meeting.

Microphones: When you are invited to speak please press the button on your
microphone, a red light will appear on the stem. Please ensure that you switch
this off after you have spoken.

Recording at Meetings

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 allows filming and
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Rushcliffe Borough Council is committed to being open and transparent in its
decision making. As such, the Council will undertake audio recording of meetings
which are open to the public, except where it is resolved that the public be
excluded, as the information being discussed is confidential or otherwise exempt



29

30

31

Agenda Iltem 3

Rushcliffe MINUTES
Borough Council OF THE MEET'NG OF THE
PLANNING COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 12 JANUARY 2023

Held at 2.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West

Bridgford

PRESENT:
Councillors R Butler (Chairman), Mrs M Stockwood (Vice-Chairman), S Bailey,
L Healy, D Mason, A Phillips, F Purdue-Horan, V Price and C Thomas

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:
5 members of the public

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

E Dodd Planning Manager - Development
Lead Specialist

S Bridges Area Planning Officer

R Gaskell Area Planning Officer

C Thompson Area Planning Officer

T Pettit Landscape Officer

A Walker Solicitor

T Coop Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES:

Councillors N Clarke and J Walker

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest recorded.
Minutes of the Meeting held on 8 December 2022

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2022 were approved as a true
record and signed by the Chairman.

Planning Applications
The Committee considered the written report of the Director — Development
and Economic Growth relating to the following applications, which had been

circulated previously.

22/00169/TORDER - Objection to the Granby No. 1 Tree Preservation
Order 2022 — The Old Vicarage, Sutton Lane, Granby, Nottinghamshire.

Updates

In accordance with the Council’s Public Speaking Protocol for Planning
Committee Dr L Wilson (Objector), addressed the Committee.

page 1



DECISION

THE GRANBY NO. 1 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2022 BE GRANTED
WITHOUT MODIFICATION.

22/00186/TORDER - Objection to East Bridgford No. 1 Tree Preservation
Order 2022 — 4 Farm Close, East Bridgford, Nottinghamshire.

Updates
There were no updates for this item.
DECISION

THE EAST BRIDGFORD NO. 1 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2022 BE
GRANTED WITHOUT MODIFICATION.

22/00181/TORDER - Objection to Hickling No. 1 Tree Preservation Order —
Land East of Hickling Road, Hickling, Nottinghamshire.

Updates

In accordance with the Council’'s Public Speaking Protocol for Planning
Committee Mr M Parker representing Sherwood Farms (Objector), addressed
the Committee.

DECISION

THE HICKLING NO. 1 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2022 BE GRANTED
WITHOUT MODIFICATION.

22/01945/FUL - Rear single storey extension and two storey side
extension above existing garage — 92 Davies Road, West Bridgford,
Nottinghamshire.

Updates

There were no updates for this item.

DECISION

PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three
years beginning with the date of this permission.

[To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
as amended by the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004].

page 2



The development hereby permitted must be carried out strictly in
accordance with the following approved drawing(s):

- Site Location Plan - received 10 October 2022

- Proposed Block Plan - dwg. no. 22-020 01003 - received 11 October
2022

- Proposed Elevations - dwg. no. 22-020 03002 P1 - received 10
October 2022

- Proposed Floor Plans - dwg. no. 22-020 02004 rev. D - received 10
October 2022.

[For the avoidance of doubt having regard to Policy 10 of the Rushcliffe
Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 of the Rushcliffe
Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019).]

The exterior of the development hereby permitted must be constructed
using only the materials specified in the submitted application form and
dwg. no. 22-020 03002 P1 both received 10 October 2022. If any
alternative materials are proposed to be used, then prior to the
development advancing beyond damp proof course level, the details of
all alternative external materials must be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Borough Council. Thereafter the development must be
carried out in accordance with the approved, alternative materials.

[To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory having
regard to policy 10 of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1. Core Strategy
2014 and policy 1 of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning
Policies 2019.]

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommended mitigation found within the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment received 215t December 2022.

[To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants having regard to Policy 2 (Climate Change) of the Rushcliffe
Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 17 (Managing Flood
Risk) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies
(2019) and Paragraph 167 of the National Planning Policy Framework
(2021).]

NOTES TO APPLICANT

Please be advised that all applications approved on or after the 7th October
2019 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Further
information about CIL can be found on the Borough Council's website at
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/.

You are advised to ensure disturbance to neighbours is kept to a minimum
during construction by restricting working hours to Monday to Friday 7.00am to
7.00pm, Saturday 8.00am to 5.00pm and by not working on Sundays or Bank
Holidays. If you intend to work outside these hours you are requested to
contact the Environmental Health Officer on 0115 9148322.

page 3


https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/

This permission does not give any legal right for any work on, over or under
land or buildings outside the application site ownership or affecting
neighbouring property, including buildings, walls, fences and vegetation within
that property. If any such work is anticipated, the consent of the adjoining
landowner must first be obtained. The responsibility for meeting any claims for
damage to such features lies with the applicant.

The provisions of the Party Wall Act 1996 may apply in relation to the
boundaries with the neighbouring properties. A Solicitor or Chartered Surveyor
may be able to give advice as to whether the proposed work falls within the
scope of this Act and the necessary measures to be taken. You can find more
information about the Party Wall Act here:

https://assets.publishing.service.qgov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/at
tachment data/file/523010/Party Wall etc Act 1996 -
Explanatory Booklet.pdf.

It is possible that the roofspace, and/or behind the soffit, fascia boards, etc.
may be used by bats. You are reminded that bats, their roosts and access to
roosts are protected and it is an offence under the Countryside and Wildlife Act
1981 to interfere with them. If evidence of bats is found, you should stop work
and contact Natural England on 0300 060 3900 or by email at
enquiries@naturalengland.org.uk.

22/01081/FUL — Demolition of existing garage; Single storey rear and side
extension; Extended raised patio to rear; Loft conversion including side
hip to gable and rear dormer. (Resubmission of 21/01993/FUL) — 59
Dunster Road, West Bridgford, Nottinghamshire.

Updates

Additional representations were received after the agenda had been published
and these were circulated to the Committee before the meeting. In accordance
with the Council’'s Public Speaking Protocol for Planning Committee Mr A
Broxholme (applicant) and Mr J Stockdale (objector) addressed the Committee.
The Solicitor read out a statement from Councillor P Gowland (Ward
Councillor).

Comments

Members of the Committee requested an additional condition to protect the
roots of the cherry tree in the neighbours garden when constructing the raised
patio.

DECISION

PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS.

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three
years beginning with the date of this permission.

page 4


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/523010/Party_Wall_etc__Act_1996_-_Explanatory_Booklet.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/523010/Party_Wall_etc__Act_1996_-_Explanatory_Booklet.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/523010/Party_Wall_etc__Act_1996_-_Explanatory_Booklet.pdf
mailto:enquiries@naturalengland.org.uk

[To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
as amended by the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004].

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out strictly in
accordance with the following approved drawings/ information:

e 1010 BS XX ZZ DR_A 0300. Proposed General Arrangement
Plans. Received 25 July 2022.

e 1010 BS XX ZZ DR_A 0601. Proposed Rear Boundary
Treatments. Received 15 August 2022.

[For the avoidance of doubt having regard to policy 10 of the Rushcliffe
Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy and policy 1 of the Rushcliffe Local
Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies].

The exterior of the development hereby permitted must be constructed
using only the materials specified in the submitted application form. If
any alternative materials are proposed to be used, then prior to the
development advancing beyond damp proof course level, the details of
all alternative external materials must be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Borough Council. Thereafter the development must be
carried out in accordance with the approved, alternative materials.

[To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory having
regard to policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local ldentity) of the
Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and policy 1 of the
Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019)].

The second floor window in the side elevation of the development

hereby permitted must be;

a) non-opening to a height of 1.70m above finished floor level, and;

b) fitted with glass which has been rendered permanently obscured
to Group 5 level of privacy or equivalent.

Similarly, the balustrade of the Juliet balcony in the rear elevation of the
rear dormer, hereby permitted, must be fitted with glass which has been
rendered permanently obscured to Group 5 level of privacy or
equivalent.

Thereafter, the window and balustrade must be retained to this
specification throughout the lifetime of the development.

[To preserve the amenities of neighbouring properties, having regard to
Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of the Rushcliffe Local
Plan Part 1. Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 (Development
Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning
Policies (2019)].

Prior to the raised terrace hereby permitted being brought into use,

boundary fencing/screening must be installed as per the approved
plans, above, on both side boundaries, to a height as depicted in the

page 5



approved plans. Thereafter, the fencing should be retained for the
lifetime of the development.

[To preserve the amenities of neighbouring properties, having regard to
Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of the Rushcliffe Local
Plan Part 1. Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 (Development
Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning
Policies (2019).]

6. Prior to commencement of construction of the rear patio, details shall be
submitted to the Borough Council outlining the method of construction
designed to protect the roots of the Cherry Tree in the neighbour’s
garden. The patio shall not be commenced until the details are approved
by the Borough Council and it shall be constructed in accordance with
the approved details.

[To protect the Cherry Tree in the neighbouring garden and to preserve
amenity in accordance with Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local
Identity) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Partl: Core Strategy (2014) and
Policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part
2: Land and Planning Policies (2019)]

NOTES TO APPLICANT

Please be advised that all applications approved on or after the 7t October
2019 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The Borough
Council considers that the approved development is not CIL chargeable, as the
additional floorspace being created is below the relevant thresholds. Further
information about CIL can be found on the Borough Council's website at
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/.

This permission does not give any legal right for any work on, over or under
land or buildings outside the application site ownership or affecting
neighbouring property, including buildings, walls, fences and vegetation within
that property. If any such work is anticipated, the consent of the adjoining
landowner must first be obtained. The responsibility for meeting any claims for
damage to such features lies with the applicant.

This grant of planning permission does not alter the private legal situation with
regard to the carrying out of any works involving land which you do not own or
control. You will need the consent of the owner(s) involved before any such
works are started.

You are advised to ensure disturbance to neighbours is kept to a minimum
during construction by restricting working hours to Monday to Friday 7.00am to
7.00pm, Saturday 8.00am to 5.00pm and by not working on Sundays or Bank
Holidays. If you intend to work outside these hours you are requested to
contact the Environmental Health Officer on 0115 9148322.

22/01980/FUL - Raised roof, loft conversion with dormer to rear — 46
Stanhome Drive, West Bridgford, Nottinghamshire.

page 6


https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/

Updates

An additional representation was received after the agenda had been
published and this was circulated to the Committee before the meeting. In
accordance with the Council’s Public Speaking Protocol for Planning
Committee Mr M Walloch (Applicant) and Councillor B Gray (Ward Councillor),
addressed the Committee.

Comments

Members of the Committee disagreed with the Officers comments in relation to
the proposed loft conversion being significantly unbalanced resulting in a
subordinate addition to the host dwelling, adding that the prevailing character
of the street is varied and that the proposal would be sympathetic to the
existing street scene. Members of the Committee requested that consideration
should be given to an ecological survey in respect of any implications when
removing the current roof space and to mitigate any adverse impact on
protected species.

DECISION

PLANNING PERMISSION BE GRANTED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS.

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three
years beginning with the date of this permission.

[To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
as amended by the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004].

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans:

e 22//2499-2 — Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans (received 14
October 2022)

e Site Location Plan (licence no. 100041041) (received 14" October
2022)

[For the avoidance of doubt having regard to policy 10 (Design and
Enhancing Local lIdentity) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core
Strategy and policy 1 (Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local
Plan Part 2: Land and Planning Policies]

3. The materials specified in the application shall be used for the external
walls and roof of the development hereby approved and no additional or
alternative materials shall be used.

[To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and to
comply with policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) of the
Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy and policy 1 (Development
Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning

page 7



Policies]
NOTES TO APPLICANT

It is possible that the roofspace, and/or behind the soffit, fascia boards, etc may
be used by bats. You are reminded that bats, their roosts and access to roosts
are protected and it is an offence under the Countryside and Wildlife Act 1981
to interfere with them. If evidence of bats is found, you should stop all work
immediately and contact Natural England on 0300 060 3900.

This permission does not give any legal right for any work on, over or under
land or buildings outside the application site ownership or affecting
neighbouring property, including buildings, walls, fences and vegetation within
that property. If any such work is anticipated, the consent of the adjoining land
owner must first be obtained. The responsibility for meeting any claims for
damage to such features lies with the applicant.

You are advised to ensure disturbance to neighbours is kept to a minimum
during construction by restricting working hours to Monday to Friday 7.00am to
7.00pm, Saturday 8.00am to 5.00pm and by not working on Sundays or Bank
Holidays. If you intend to work outside these hours you are requested to
contact the Environmental Health Officer on 0115 9148322.

Please be advised that all applications approved on or after the 7th October
2019 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy. Further information
about CIL can be found on the Borough Council's website at
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/

The meeting closed at 5.28 pm.

CHAIRMAN

page 8


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rushcliffe.gov.uk%2Fplanningandgrowth%2Fcil%2F&data=05%7C01%7CTCoop%40rushcliffe.gov.uk%7C6b41922af52843e1424508daf7de5b82%7C0fb26f95b29d4825a41a86c75ea1246a%7C0%7C0%7C638094831627738387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AolOzv0waYbo4o4%2FKFilhySvK7y3rYmAjzMHh8nTSNE%3D&reserved=0

Agenda ltem 4

Planning Committee
Thursday, 9 February 2023

) Planning Applications
Rushcliffe J PP

Borough Council

Report of the Director — Development and Economic Growth

PLEASE NOTE:

1. Slides relating to the application will be shown where appropriate.
2. Plans illustrating the report are for identification only.
3. Background Papers - the application file for each application is available for

public inspection at the Rushcliffe Customer Contact Centre in accordance
with  the Local Government Act 1972 and relevant planning
legislation/Regulations. Copies of the submitted application details are
available on the website http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-
applications/. This report is available as part of the Planning Committee
Agenda which can be viewed five working days before the meeting at
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Committeeld=140
Once a decision has been taken on a planning application the decision notice
is also displayed on the website.

4. Reports to the Planning Committee take into account diversity and Crime and
Disorder issues. Where such implications are material they are referred to in the
reports, where they are balanced with other material planning considerations.

5. With regard to S17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 the Police have
advised they wish to be consulted on the following types of applications: major
developments; those attracting significant numbers of the public e.g. public
houses, takeaways etc.; ATM machines, new neighbourhood facilities including
churches; major alterations to public buildings; significant areas of open
space/landscaping or linear paths; form diversification to industrial uses in
isolated locations.

6. Where the Planning Committee have power to determine an application but
the decision proposed would be contrary to the recommendation of the
Director — Development and Economic Growth, the application may be referred
to the Council for decision.

7. The following notes appear on decision notices for full planning permissions:
“When carrying out building works you are advised to use door types and
locks conforming to British Standards, together with windows that are
performance tested (i.e. to BS 7950 for ground floor and easily accessible
windows in homes). You are also advised to consider installing a burglar
alarm, as this is the most effective way of protecting against burglary.

page 9


http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/
http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/
http://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=140

If you have not already made a Building Regulations application we would
recommend that you check to see if one is required as soon as possible. Help
and guidance can be obtained by ringing 0115 914 8459, or by looking at our

web site at

http://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/buildingcontrol

Application

20/03289/FUL

Ward

Recommendation

Address Page

Tacet House, Hickling Lane, Upper 11-30
Broughton, Nottinghamshire LE14 3AZ

Extension and alteration of host dwelling; to
include two-storey side extension, two-storey
rear extension, first-floor front extension,
single-storey front porch extension, single-
storey rear extension, single-storey link
extension to annexe, and roof and
fenestration alterations. Erection of detached
garage and workshop. Conversion and
extension of single-storey garage into
annexe; to include a roof raise, single-storey
side extension and fenestration alterations.
Associated landscaping works.

Nevile And Langar

Grant planning permission subject to
conditions

page 10


http://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/buildingcontrol

Maund

Application Number: 20/03289/FUL

Tacet House, Hickling Lane, Upper Broughton e et e
e d'Ju ! :;U’I of Ordnanoe Survey an uu-'iuf of e .Cr.l'lru e

w%—: of Her Majesiys Safonay Offioe @ Cown Copyrghi.

Unaudhon=ed mproducion nfnges Croan Coyght and
5

scale 1:2000 page 11 may lad fo prosscufon o gvl proceedings.

Rushdifie Bomugh Coundl - 100013419



This page is intentionally left blank



20/03289/FUL

Applicant Mr & Mrs McBallantine
| Location | Tacet House,, Hickling Lane Upper Broughton, Nottinghamshire
LE14 3AZ
| Proposal | Extension and alteration of host dwelling; to include two-storey side

extension, two-storey rear extension, first-floor front extension, single-
storey front porch extension, single-storey rear extension, single-
storey link extension to annexe, and roof and fenestration alterations.
Erection of detached garage and workshop. Conversion and
extension of single-storey garage into annexe; to include a roof raise,
single-storey side extension and fenestration alterations. Associated
landscaping works.

Ward

Nevile And Langar

Full Details of the proposal can be found here

THE SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

1.

DETAI

4.

The application property is a detached dwelling of mid-to-late twentieth
century construction. It is finished in a red/brown brick with a predominantly
dual-pitched roof with front and rear facing gables, of which are finished in a
dark brown roof tile. The dwelling is split across three levels due to the
topography of the site, of which slopes down towards the North-East. The
rear facing two-storey gable is set on lower ground than the bulk of the
dwelling.

The application site is residential land consisting of the original dwelling, a
rear conservatory and detached garage, in addition to a sizeable driveway
and front, side and rear gardens whilst further residential curtilage and non-
residential curtilage adjoins the site within the applicants ownership.

The site is located to the North of the village of Upper Broughton, and is on
the North boundary of the Upper Broughton Conservation Area. The property
is accessed via large, timber and metal inward opening gates between two
brick piers on Hickling Lane, a single-track lane linking Melton Road to Green
Lane. It is located on the East side of Hickling Lane behind a row of hedges
and mature trees.

LS OF THE PROPOSAL

The proposal include multiple elements which are described as follows.
Changes to the house.

Single-storey side/rear extension — this element would project to the rear of
the bulk of the dwelling by a maximum of ¢.7.48m and c.11.51m from the side
elevation of the existing rear projecting two-storey element at lower ground
floor level. It would consist of a lean-to roof, flat roof and 1no rear facing and

page 13



https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QM5213NLL1600

10.

11.

12.

1no side facing gable. The flat roof element would facilitate a roof terrace
accessible from the master bedroom.

Two storey side extension - this would project from the North-East elevation
by ¢.3.36m. It would have a width to match, of ¢.5.87m, and have a gable end
with a pitch to match the host dwelling but be set down the from ridge by
c.0.40m. At first-floor, the extension would facilitate a covered balcony that
would adjoin the flat roof of the single-storey side/rear extension, whilst at
ground-floor extend the kitchen area.

First-floor front extension above the single-storey gabled front element - This
would effectively be a roof raise, by c¢.2.00m, such that it would have an
eaves and ridge height to match the host dwelling, maintaining the same
footprint, with a gable end with the same roof pitch.

Two-storey gabled side/rear extension - this would project ¢.5.78m from the
rear elevation and c.5.76m from the side elevation of the existing rear
projecting two-storey element. It would have a ridge height to match the host
dwelling. The extension would partly include a covered roof terrace at first-
floor.

It is also proposed to remove the existing lean-to covered front porch and for
the erection of a single storey stepped front extension located between the
two front gables. It would have a lean-to roof that would follow the roof plane
of the host dwelling and a central gable. It is also proposed for the erection of
an open front porch forward of the front extension, with a gable end to match
the gable of the front extension.

Single-storey link extension between the host dwelling and the garage — This
is proposed to be converted and extended to facilitate an annexe, facilitated
through the removal of the existing conservatory. It would have a part dual-
pitched roof and part flat roof.

The existing garage is proposed to be extended through a first-floor
extension/roof lift. The pitch would be maintained, and the eaves and ridge
height would be increased by ¢.1.35m.

A series of fenestration and detail alterations are also proposed as a result of
the extensions and alterations, including to the existing garage and dwelling,
whilst the insertion of 2no front and rear facing rooflights are proposed on the
host dwelling.

New garage. It is proposed to erect a single-storey detached garage and
workshop in the south west corner parcel of the site, with Hickling Lane
adjacent to the North-west and the neighbour, Brotone, to the South-East. It
would measure ¢.16.43m in width and c¢.8.63m in length. It would
predominantly have a hipped roof with an eaves height of ¢.2.78m and a
ridge height of ¢.5.39m. The detached structure would have a central gabled
end projecting forward by ¢.1.30m, with an eaves height to match and a ridge
height of ¢.5.39m. The detached building would be ‘sunken’ into the existing
ground of which slopes towards the North-East, facilitated through significant
excavation works. The building would facilitate a 3-bay garage and workshop,
with a storage area in the roofspace.

page 14



13.

14.

The proposal would include multiple areas of new/extended patio areas, a
new pedestrian path, and an enlarged driveway leading to the proposed
garage.

Negotiations have taken part throughout the course of the application as a
result of concerns raised by planning officers, the Borough Council's
Conservation Office rand several other consultees. The current proposal is of
a reduced scale in comparison to the original submission, through the
extensions to the host dwelling and garage being reduced, in addition to the
proposed detached garage/workshop, and has removed several Juliet
balconies and overhanging canopies, amended fenestration size/type, added
a variety of brick detailing and no longer proposes the application of render to
the front elevation.

SITE HISTORY

15.

01/00743/FUL — Conservatory — PERMITTED.

REPRESENTATIONS - Response to Original Submission (January to February

2021)

Ward Councillor(s)

16.

Ward Councillor, Cllr T Combellack, objects to the proposal due to the
domestication of an agricultural field, scale of resultant dwelling not in
keeping with the location, and the garage and domestic uses being capable
of being a dwelling.

Town/Parish Council

17.

Upper Broughton Parish Council object, due to the impact on the street scene
and Conservation Area.

Statutory and Other Consultee

18.

19.

20.

Nottinghamshire County Council

The Highway Authority does not object.

Rushcliffe Borough Council

The Environmental Sustainability Officer objects.

Local Residents and the General Public

Four representations have been received from neighbouring occupiers/local
residents objecting to the proposal. The concerns raised are summarised as
follows:

e Siting and scale of the proposed garage/workshop.

Effect on protected views.

Effect on Conservation Area.

Scale of the proposal in comparison to the existing dwelling.
Overdevelopment of the site.

page 15



e Removal of hedge separating residential and agricultural land and unclear
as to what is residential curtilage.

REPRESENTATIONS — Upon receipt of Tree Report and Protected Species
Report (September to November 2021)

Statutory and Other Consultees

Rushcliffe Borough Council

21.

22.

23.

The Environmental Sustainability Officer does not object and provides
recommendations for conditions and informatives.

The Design and Landscape Officer does not object to the removal of T3, but
recommends the retention of T2, the planting of native tree planting on the
roadside frontage, and notes that neighbouring trees may be effected by
excavation works.

The Conservation Officer objects to the proposal due to:

e Proposed massing and scale would be prominent when viewed both from
and into the Conservation Area, whilst extensions are not subordinate.

¢ Not reflecting the rectilinear form of rural buildings (e.g. Large balconies,
overhanging roofs and Juliet balconies) instead more suited to a suburban
setting.

e A significant increase in glazing providing a new level artificial light to the
countryside.

e The use of materials, in addition to the enlarged scale and assing, would
result in competition with Sulney Fields.

e The scale and design of the outbuilding would be out of keeping with the
character of domestic outbuildings within the Conservation Area.

REPRESENTATIONS - Response to Current Submission (November 2022 to
19 January 2023)

Ward Councillor(s)

The Ward Councillor (Clir T Combellack), objects due to overdevelopment of
the site and impacts on a key view within the Conservation Area and contrary
to local and neighbourhood plans. It is requested that conditions be
implemented on any approval relating to the use of the garage/workshop and
for the replanting of the boundary hedge.

Town/Parish Council

24.

Upper Broughton Parish Council maintains their previous comments and
objection.

Statutory and Other Consultees

Nottinghamshire County Council

25.

The Highways Authority refers to their standing advice.

page 16



Rushcliffe Borough Council

26.

27.

28.

The Design _and Landscape Officer does not object and recommends
conditions to be implemented regarding specification of tree planting and tree
protection fencing as recommended in the arboricultural report.

The Conservation Officer does not object and notes the much-improved
scheme. “My previous concerns are no longer an issue and | have no
additional further comments to add at this time”. They note the previous
requested conditions remain pertinent.

The Environmental Sustainability Officer, maintains their previous comment
and recommendation.

Local Residents and the General Public

29.

Four representations have been received from neighbouring occupiers/local
residents objecting to the proposal. The concerns raised are summarised as
follows:

e Amendments are insignificant.

Effect on protected views.

Effect on Conservation Area/street scene.

Effect on neighbouring property, Brotone.

Potential use of garage/workshop.

Overdevelopment of the site.

Full details of all representations can be found here.

PLANNING POLICY

30.

The decision on any application should be taken in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
Development Plan for Rushcliffe consists of The Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1:
Core Strategy and The Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning
Policies (LPP2). For the Parish of Upper Broughton The Upper Broughton
Neighbourhood Plan (UBNP) also forms part of the opted development plan.
Other material considerations include the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) (Revised 2021) the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG) and the Rushcliffe Residential Design Guide (RRDG).

The full text of the Council’s policies are available on the Council’s website at:
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningpolicy/.

Relevant Local Planning Policies and Guidance

31.

The following policies of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1. Core Strategy are
considered to be relevant to the current proposal:

Policy 1 — Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development.

Policy 10 — Design and Enhancing Local Identity.

Policy 11 — Historic Environment.

Policy 17 — Biodiversity.

page 17


https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=RCKTZGNLKDK00
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningpolicy/

Full text of the above Policies can be found here.

32. The following policies of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and Planning
Policies (LPP2) are considered to be relevant to the current proposal:
e Policy 1 - Development Requirements.
e Policy 28 - Conserving and Enhancing Heritage Assets.
e Policy 38 - Non-Designated Biodiversity Assets and the Wider Ecological
Network.

Full text of the above Policies can be found here.

33. The following policies of The Upper Broughton Neighbourhood Plan (UBNP)
are considered to be relevant to the current proposal:
e Policy UB2 - Locally Important Views.

Policy UB4 - Local Heritage Assets.

Policy UB5 - Local Design and Amenity.

Policy UB8 - Ecology and Biodiversity.

Policy UB9 - Trees and Hedges.

The Upper Broughton Neighbourhood Plan can be found here.

34. The Rushcliffe Residential Design Guide (2009) sets out guidance for
extension design and assessment of amenity impacts.

Relevant National Planning Policies and Guidance

35. The relevant national policy considerations for this proposal are those
contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the
proposal should be considered within the context of a presumption in favour
of sustainable development as a core principle of the NPPF.

36. The NPPF includes a presumption in favour of sustainable development.
Local planning authorities should approach decisions on proposed
development in a positive and creative way and work proactively with
applicants to secure developments that will improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the area. In assessing and determining
development proposals, local planning authorities should apply the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Decision-makers at every
level should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where
possible.

37. Achieving sustainable development means that the planning system has
three overarching objectives, an economic objective, a social objective and
an environmental objective, which are interdependent and need to be
pursued in mutually supportive ways, so that opportunities can be taken to
secure net gains across each of the different objectives.

38. As such, the following sections in the NPPF with regard to achieving
sustainable development are considered most relevant to this planning
application:

e Chapter 2 - Achieving Sustainable Development.
e Chapter 12 - Achieving Well Designed Places.

page 18


https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/planningandbuilding/planningpolicy/corestrategyexamination/9%20Local%20Plan%20Part%201%20Rushcliffe%20Core%20Strategy.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/media/1rushcliffe/media/documents/pdf/planningandbuilding/planningpolicy/lapp/adoption/Rushcliffe%20LP%20Part%202_Adoption%20version.pdf
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningpolicy/neighbourhoodplanning/#d.en.42681

e Chapter 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.
e Chapter 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment.

Full details of the NPPF can be found here.

39.

40.

41.

42.

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that with respect for development which affects a listed building
or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the case may be, the
Secretary of State shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving
the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic
interest which it possesses.

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation
area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of that area.

The requirements of Regulation 535 of the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations (2010) must be applied and in particular the three tests
set out in sub-paragraphs (2)(e), (9)(a) and (9)(b)6.

1. Regulation 53(2)(e) states: a licence can be granted for the purposes of
"preserving public health or public safety or other imperative reasons of
overriding public interest including those of a social or economic nature
and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the environment".

2. Regulation 53(9)(a) states: the appropriate authority shall not grant a
licence unless they are satisfied "that there is no satisfactory alternative".

3. Regulation 53(9)(b) states: the appropriate authority shall not grant a
licence unless they are satisfied "that the action authorised will not be
detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned
at a favourable conservation status in their natural range".

Biodiversity and geological conservation: circular 06/2005 provides
administrative guidance on the application of the law relating to planning and
nature conservation as it applies in England.

APPRAISAL

43.

44.

Applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
Framework does not change the statutory status of the development plan as
the starting point for decision making. Proposed development that accords
with an up-to-date Local Plan should be approved, and proposed
development that conflicts should be refused unless other material
considerations indicate otherwise.

The main issues in the consideration of the application are; the principle of
development; design/impact upon the character and appearance of the
streetscene, heritage, and impacts upon residential amenity.

Principle of Development

45.

There is no objection in principle to the proposed alterations and extension of
the existing residential building, provided it would be designed to a high
page 19


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf

standard, respect the established character of the area, and would not have
an adverse effect on the amenity, whilst being in accordance with the policies
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021), The Rushcliffe Local Plan
Part 1 and The Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2.

Design Issues, Heritage and Surrounding Area

46.

47.

48.

49.

The application property is located in the East section of the Conservation
Area, as outlined in the Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan,
which includes a ‘mixture of building types including many modern properties.
The majority of buildings are not clearly visible from the roads as they are
screened by established hedges and groups of trees.” The same document
states that ‘good contemporary design which respects local character and the
context of the site will be encouraged.” The residential design guide states
that, typically, ‘the style and design of the original dwelling should remain the
dominant element with the extension subordinate to it’ although exceptions
generally include the improvement of a dwelling in which is not particularly
attractive whilst retaining its general built form.

The existing dwelling is not of any notable architectural or historical merit and
is not, as a building design, representative of the strengths of the
conservation area — aside from the gabled roof forms and use of brick. The
proposed extensions would be considered to maintain the positive key
features of the existing dwelling and be sympathetic to them such as the
maximum ridge height being retained, the new gables having a pitch to match
those already present on the host dwelling and making use of a red/brown
brick. Other aspects retained include the property being split over three levels
and whilst undoubtedly notably larger than the existing dwelling, the retention
of the existing site arrangement with regards to general form and property
orientation.

Although the extensions would not all be subordinate additions in and of
themselves when considered against the existing built form on site, the
extensions as a whole would be seen to build upon the key characteristics of
the existing building and provide for an enhancement through the various
brick detailings (including corbel banding, window detailing and eaves/verge
detailing) and providing more visual interest and features to each elevation.

Traditionally the Rushcliffe Residential Design Guide advocates that
extensions be subordinate to the existing building, usually achieved through
design detail such as retaining the original frontage and roof form with all
extensions then clearly set away, set back and designed so as to ensure the
original form can be understood. This general guide is important in areas
where properties of individual merit and design value are being altered, or
where group character is important in the area (usually defined by areas with
numbers of properties of similar if not identical design, and layout). In this
instance however the key characteristics of this site must be considered the
sites edge of settlement location and accordingly how the scheme interacts
with the surrounding open countryside. Whilst of traditional form, the property
is not of historic interest and holds no group character with surrounding
forms. Accordingly the focus when assessing design in this matter relates
largely to the designs interaction with the key characteristics of the site,
rather than those of the existing building.

page 20



50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

As such, whilst of notable scale and scope, the works proposed are
considered to provide for a scheme that would make appropriate use of
materials and design to provide for an enhancement to the existing building
through a re-modelling exercise that could not be provided for should the
extensions be required design being subservient to the existing structure.
The key characteristics of the site such as materiality, use of gabled forms,
orientation and overall heights are considered to have been sensitively
respected whilst the increased footprint of development across the site, and
increased roof form resultant from the extensions would not be considered
harmful to the characteristics of the area. Enhancements provided in terms of
detailing to the building and detailing to the public facing elevations would be
considered an enhancement over the existing property in accordance with
the design policies outlined above.

The Conservation Area Appraisal and Management plan outlines positive
open spaces and key unlisted buildings within the Conservation Area, whilst
the Upper Broughton Neighbourhood Plan outlines Key Views towards/within
Upper Broughton.

To the South-East boundary of the site, there is a positive green space (as
identified in the Conservation Area Townscape Appraisal Map) which is not
considered to be affected by the proposals given that the works would be a
significant distance from this green space, whilst also screened by a wooded
area and further vegetation, which is proposed to be added to as part of the
application. Also to the South-East lies a Key Unlisted Building, Sulney
Fields, which is seen in the far right hand corner of Key View 11 in the Upper
Broughton Neighbourhood Plan (Appendix Ill). Given that the application
property is predominantly screened by the Key Unlisted Building, due to
being sited to the rear (North), there are no significant concerns with regards
to the effect of the proposals on the Key Unlisted Building, whilst the dwelling
(as a result of the works) would remain as a contrasting brick finish so as to
not compete with Sulney Fields and the locally important view.

The Conservation Officer has confirmed that, as a result of the changes
throughout the course of the application, their previous concerns are no
longer pertinent subject to the implementation of conditions relating to the
submission and approval of materials and landscaping scheme. Thus, the
design and finish of the works would be such that the property would be
enhanced by the proposal and as such, there would be no harm to the
special interest of the Conservation Area. Having assessed the scheme as
submitted, Officer's have drawn no concerns that would conflict with the
assessments of the Specialist Advisor, and as such the scheme would be
considered to achieve the desirable criteria of Section 72 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 in preserving the special
architectural and historic character of the Conservation Area. Accordingly, the
development would accord with local and national heritage policies of the
development plan.

The proposed detached garage/workshop would be located in the South-
West corner of the site. It would be a 1.5 storey building measuring ¢.16.4m
in width and ¢.8.63m in length and it would have a predominantly hipped roof
structure and a front projecting gable. At ground floor, the building would
facilitate a 4-bay garage/workshop. First-floor space would be used for
storage only, without appropriate head space for a habitable room.

page 21



55.

56.

57.

58.

Trees

59.

60.

The building would be sunken into the ground (facilitated through excavation
works) and thus, the building would have a ridge c.1.25m lower than the
neighbouring property to the South-East. Due to the size of the building, the
proposed topography of the site, and the existing and proposed boundary
treatments, the garage/workshop would not be easily visible from Hickling
Lane. Similarly, due to its position in relation to the host dwelling, the South-
East neighbour (Brotone) and Sulney Fields to the East, the building would
not be easily visible from public domain. As such, there are no concerns on
the effect of the surrounding area. That said, it is considered that the building
would be attractive and representative of the area through its material choice
and front projecting gable.

It is noted that concerns have been raised with regards to the
garage/workshop being used as an independent dwelling. Although the size
of the building is significant, the application will be assessed as per the
information submitted of which is as a use incidental to the host dwelling, as
a garage, workshop and storage building. A condition will be implemented on
any such approval restricting the ability for the building to be let out or used
as a separate dwelling.

It is noted that concerns have been raised with regards to the
overdevelopment of the site as a result of proposed extensions and the
erection of a detached garage/workshop.

Although it is noted that the dwelling and garage/workshop building would be
of a significant size, Officers consider the dwelling to be sympathetic to the
site constraints and wider character of the area as outlined above. The
proposed site would provide ample garden and outdoor amenity areas for a
dwelling of this size, in addition to having sufficient car parking arrangements.
Accordingly the scope of development sought across the site would not be
considered over intensive or out of character for the area.

and Hard & Soft Landscaping

In terms of hard landscaping, it is proposed for the construction of an
enlarged driveway leading to the garage/workshop and a turning area
adjacent to it, in addition to new paths and patio areas to the side and rear of
the property. With regards to soft landscaping, it is proposed for new tree
planting to the North-West and South-East boundaries, in addition to planting
within the site. The details would be confirmed by condition for a landscaping
scheme to be submitted to and approved by the Local Authority.

With regards to the existing trees on the site, many of which are mature trees
including Ash, Cedar, Sycamore, Hawthorne, Cherry and Apple. T2 (Ash)
located on the North-West boundary, as indicated in the submitted Tree
Report and outlines its poor quality and its severe decline. Thus, the
Council’'s Design and Landscape Officer wouldn’t object to its removal
subject to a replacement being planted. The proposed site plan indicates a
new Silver Birch tree in a similar location on this boundary and its details
dealt with as part of the aforementioned condition.

page 22



61.

It is understood that the works would have no bearing on any other trees due
to being outside of the root protection area and necessary tree protection
measures implemented and secured by condition.

Impact of Proposed Development on Amenity of Adjoining Occupiers

62.

Core Strategy Policy 10 states that development should be assessed in
terms of its impact on the amenity of nearby residents. This is reinforced
under Policy 1 of the Land and Planning Policies document, which states that
development should not be granted where there is a significant adverse
effect upon the amenity of adjoining properties.

Proposed Extensions:

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

Overshadowing and Overbearing —

The application property is the Northern most property within the settlement
of Upper Broughton with neighbours to the East, South-East and South. The
proposed dwelling would be sited ¢.25.5m from the East boundary, at its
closest point, and c.17.5m from the South boundary.

Given the scale of the proposed extensions and their siting in relation to
nearby dwellings, whilst taking into account the boundary treatments, there
are no significant concerns with regards to the level or overshadowing or
overbearing impacts on neighbouring properties.

Overlooking —

The proposed would result in an increased amount of glazing on the dwelling
in addition to balconies on the North-East (side) and South-East (rear)
elevations. It is noted that the North-East (side) and North-West (front)
elevations do not have an outlook towards any properties.

Given that the South-East (rear) elevation would have an outlook
predominantly contained within the substantial site boundaries and wooded
areas, and a distance of c.40m to the nearest dwelling elevation, there are no
significant overlooking concerns. With regards to the South elevation (which
consists of a 4-pane bifolding door and 3-pane bifolding door at ground floor
and a gable window at first floor) it would have an outlook directly towards
Brotone to the South, of which the property is sited c.21m from the proposed
South elevation and beyond a significant amount of natural screening. The
South-West elevation, although facing towards Brotone, does not have any
significant amount of glazing.

As such, there are no significant overlooking concerns as a result of the
proposed extensions.

Proposed Garage/\Workshop:

68.

Overshadowing and Overbearing —

The proposed garage/workshop would be located to the North-West of
Brotone. It would be sunken into the ground such that the building would
have a ridge c.1.25m lower the ridge of Brotone, and be sited ¢.5.7m from the
nearest elevation. Due to the limited massing in relation to the current land
levels due to the sunken nature of the garage, in addition to the design of the
structure, whilst being located to the North-West of Brotone, there are no
significant overshadowing or overbearing concerns.

page 23



69.

70.

71.

It would be sited a significant distance to the North of Mill House and as such,
there are no significant concerns in relation to overshadowing or overbearing.

Overlooking —

On the front elevation, facing towards the application property, the dwelling
would include a series of bifolding doors at ground floor level facilitating the
garage and workshop, and 2no rooflights facilitation the storage room at first-
floor. Given the outlook, there are no significant concerns.

There are 2no rooflights on each side elevation of which would facilitate the
ground floor and not have an outlook from first-floor level. As such, there are
no significant overlooking concerns.

Other Matters

Removal of boundary hedge:

72.

73.

74.

It is noted that concerns have been raised with regards to the removal of the
boundary hedge in which separated the residential curtilage with the
agricultural field to the North-East and is beyond the settlement boundary /
‘limits to development’ as outlined in the Upper Broughton Neighbourhood
Plan. The removal of a hedge, albeit in a conservation area, would not
require any permission from the Council. That said, the use of non-residential
land as part of the residential land would require a change of use application.

The application in question does not build upon, or make use of, any land
outside of the existing residential curtilage whilst the applicant is aware of the
extent of the residential curtilage which is denoted in the site plan and
appears to be correct.

As such, Officers have no undue concerns with the proposal making use of
land outside of the residential curtilage or settlement boundary — although, an
informative of any approval would be implemented as a written reminder for
the occupier, and any future occupier, outlining that the use of any portion of
this field without express permission would be enforceable.

Ecology

75.

76.

77.

The site consists of buildings and garden including amenity grassland
hardstanding, semi mature and mature trees and small pond. Bat roosts have
been confirmed in the main building. The garden supports foraging bats and
has potential to support roosting and foraging birds, hedgehogs and
invertebrates. No priority habitats were identified on site. Agricultural land
with tree lined hedgerows are found adjacent to the property with residential
properties to the south.

Works to the main house including the creation of vaulted ceilings utilising the
existing loft space and tying in parts of the extension would potentially impact
the identified bat roosts, and accordingly a European Protected Species
License would be required.

The Conservation of Habitat and Species Regulations 2017 and the Wildlife

and Countryside Act (as amended) 1981 contain certain prohibitions against

activities affecting European Protected Species, such as bats. These include

prohibitions against the deliberate capturing, killing or disturbance and

against the damage or destruction of a breeding site or resting place of such
page 24



78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

an animal. The Habitats Directive and Regulations provides for the
derogation from these prohibitions in certain circumstances. Natural England
is the body primarily responsible for enforcing these prohibitions and is
responsible for a separate licensing regime that allows what would otherwise
be an unlawful act to be carried out lawfully.

The Council as local planning authority is obliged in considering whether to
grant planning permission to have regard to the requirements of the Habitats
Directive and Habitats Regulations in so far as they may be affected by the
grant of permission. Where the prohibitions in the Regulations will be
offended (for example where European Protected Species will be disturbed
by the development) then the Council is obliged to consider the likelihood of a
licence being subsequently issued by Natural England and the "three tests"
under the Regulations being satisfied.

Natural England will grant a licence where the following three tests are met:

1. There are "imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those
of a social or economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary
importance for the environment”.

2. There is no satisfactory alternative; and

3. The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the
population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status
in their natural range.

When considering 'imperative reasons of overriding public interest, including

those of a social and economic nature' Natural England will take into account

whether the activities/ developments are required to meet or provide a

contribution to meeting a specific need such as:

e the requirement to maintain the nation's health, safety, education,
environment (sustainable development, green energy, green transport);

e complying with planning policies and guidance at a national, regional and
local level;

e requirements for economic or social development (Nationally Significant
Infrastructure Projects, employment, regeneration, mineral extraction,
housing, pipelines, etc.).

The Supreme Court has clarified that it could not see why planning
permission should not ordinarily be granted unless it is concluded that the
proposed development is unlikely to be issued a license by Natural England.

In considering the first test, the proposed works would improve the energy
efficiency of the house, allowing it to be brought up to modern living
standards and therefore allowing for its long term and viable retention as a
building, therefore reducing carbon emissions from both its continued use,
and embedded carbon in the fall-back event the house is left without
improvement. As such there are environmental sustainability benefits as well
as social benefits arising from the proposed development that would
constitute imperative reasons to justify the proposed works.

page 25



83.

84.

85.

86.

In considering the second test, it is noted that any works to this site has the
potential to cause impact (including works without the benefit of planning
permission), and accordingly the only alternative would be for no works to be
hereafter approved to the site, resulting in environmental, social and
economic harms.

In considering the third test, the Borough Council's Environmental
Sustainability Officer confirms that a bat survey has been provided and
appears to have been carried out in accordance with good practice showing
that a bat roost for Common Pipistrelles bats may be impacted. A licence is
likely to be provided subject to suitable mitigation being provided, therefore it
can be deemed that the favourable conservation status of a protected
species will be unaffected by the proposed development subject to
conditions.

As such, the three tests are seen to be adhered to. The conservation status
of protected species would not be impacted subject to suitable mitigation and
enhancements which can be secured by condition, in accordance with
policies of the development plan.

Recommendations for conditions and informatives have been made by the
consultant ecologist and the Council’s Environmental Sustainability Officer
should the application be approved, which will be implemented.

Third Party Representations

87.

During the consultation process, a number of objections have been received
regarding the proposed development. Objections have been received from a
Ward Councillor, the Parish Council, Statutory Consultees and members of
the public. Those objections/issues are considered to be covered within the
Officer Report.

Recommendation

88.

It is considered that the proposed development will not negatively impact the
amenity of the occupiers of surrounding properties or be detrimental to the
character and appearance of the area including the Conservation Area. The
proposal therefore complies with local and national policies and it is
recommended that planning permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION

It is RECOMMENDED that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years

beginning with the date of this permission.

[To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended by the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004].

. The development hereby permitted must be carried out strictly in accordance

with the following approved plan(s)/drawings/documents, received 31
October 2022.

page 26



6791 03 005 REV B - Proposed Site Plan.

6791 03 006 REV B — Proposed Lower and Ground Floor Plans.
6791 03 007 REV B — Proposed First Floor and Roof Plans.
6791_03-008 REV A — Proposed Elevations.

6791_03_009 REV B - Proposed Garage Plans and Elevations.

[For the avoidance of doubt having regard to Policy 10 of the Rushcliffe Local
Plan Part 1. Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1 of the Rushcliffe Local Plan
Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019)].

. The development hereby permitted must not proceed above the damp proof
course level until details of the type, texture and colour of the materials, along
with any architectural detailing to be used in the construction of the exterior of
the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development must only be constructed in
accordance with the approved materials.

[To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory having regard
to policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) of the Rushcliffe Local
Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and policy 1 of the Rushcliffe Local Plan
Part 2: Land and Planning Policies (2019)].

. No operations shall commence on site until the existing trees and/or hedges
which are to be retained have been protected in accordance with details to be
approved in writing by the Borough Council and that protection shall be
retained for the duration of the construction period. No materials, machinery
or vehicles are to be stored or temporary buildings erected within the
perimeter of the fence, nor is any excavation work to be undertaken within
the confines of the fence without the written approval of the Borough Council.
No changes of ground level shall be made within the protected area without
the written approval of the Borough Council.

[To safeguard against significant adverse effects on the landscape character
of the area having regard to Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity)
of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014); Policy 1
(Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and
Planning Policies (2019) and Chapter 12 (Achieving Well-designed Places) of
the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019)].

. Prior to the commencement of works beyond damp proof course level, a
landscaping scheme detailing the hard and soft landscaping of the site
(including the location, number, size and species of any new trees/shrubs to
be planted), shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Thereafter the scheme must be carried out and completed in accordance with
the approved details no later than during the first planting season (October -
March) following either the substantial completion of the development hereby
permitted or it being brought into use, whichever is sooner.

If, within a period of 5 years of from the date of planting, any tree or shrub
planted as part of the approved scheme is removed, uprooted, destroyed,
dies or become diseased or damaged then another tree or shrub of the same

page 27



species and size as that originally planted must be planted in the same place
during the next planting season following its removal.

Once provided all hard landscaping works shall thereafter be permanently
retained throughout the lifetime of the development.

[To ensure the development creates a visually attractive environment and to
safeguard against significant adverse effects on the landscape character of
the area having regard to Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity) of
the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014); Policy 1
(Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and
Planning Policies (2019) and Chapter 12 (Achieving Well-designed Places) of
the National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019)].

. The garage/workshop building hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any
time other than for purposes incidental to the residential use of the host
dwelling known as ‘Tacet House’ and shall not be sold or let separately.

[To ensure that the use of the building hereby permitted is not used as a
separate dwelling independently from the existing dwelling the development
is of a nature whereby future development of this type should be closely
controlled having regard Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identify) of
the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy (2014) and Policy 1
(Development Requirements) of the Rushcliffe Local Plan Part 2: Land and
Planning Policies (2019)].

. If works have not commenced by June 2023, an updated ecological survey
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Authority, and development
shall thereafter only take place in accordance with the requirements and
mitigation measures outlined within the approved survey report and any
details agreed in respect of condition 8 of this permission.

[In the interests of protected species and biodiversity and to comply with
Policy 17 (Biodiversity) of the Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy; Policies 1
(Development Requirements) and 38 (Non-Designated Biodiversity Assets
and the Wider Ecological Network) of the Local Plan Part 2].

. Prior to the commencement of works, a mitigation plan and enhancement
plan must be supplied to the Local Planning authority and agreed in writing,
which sets out how the working methods adopted and the timing of
development will avoid impacting bats (reasonable avoidance measures
(RAMSs)), and how any impacts will be compensated through bat boxes /
bricks and wild bird nests. The agreed mitigation and enhancement plan must
then be adhered to during construction and following completion.

[In the interests of amenity and biodiversity and to comply with Policy 17
(Biodiversity) of the Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy; Policies 1
(Development Requirements) and 38 (Non-Designated Biodiversity Assets
and the Wider Ecological Network) of the Local Plan Part 2].

. Prior to the installation of any external lighting details of the lighting shall be

submitted to and approved in writing by the Borough Council, together with a

lux plot of the estimated illuminance and supporting details confirming that

any scheme be sensitive to bats. The lighting shall be installed only in
page 28



accordance with the approved details.

[In the interests of amenity and biodiversity and to comply with Policy 17
(Biodiversity) of the Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy; Policies 1
(Development Requirements) and 38 (Non-Designated Biodiversity Assets
and the Wider Ecological Network) of the Local Plan Part 2].

Note-

The application was not the subject of pre-application consultation however any
significant concerns have been raised and resolved during the consideration of the
scheme allowing for the decision to be issued within an agreed extension of time.

Having regard to the above and having taken into account matters raised there are
no other material considerations which are of significant weight in reaching a
decision on this application.

NOTES TO APPLICANT

You are advised that this application does not give permission for any change of use
of land and any additional land proposed to be used for domestic purposes would
be subject to a separate planning application.

You are advised to ensure disturbance to neighbours is kept to a minimum during
construction by restricting working hours to Monday to Friday 7.00am to 7.00pm,
Saturday 8.00am to 5.00pm and by not working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. If
you intend to work outside these hours you are requested to contact the
Environmental Health Officer on 0115 9148322.

The submitted protected species survey has confirmed that there is evidence of bats
in the roof of the main house and as such no work should be undertaken to this
structure until a licence has been obtained from DEFRA.

This grant of planning permission does not alter the private legal situation with
regard to the carrying out of any works involving land which you do not own or
control. You will need the consent of the owner(s) involved before any such works
are started.

This permission does not give any legal right for any work on, over or under land or
buildings outside the application site ownership or affecting neighbouring property,
including buildings, walls, fences and vegetation within that property. If any such
work is anticipated, the consent of the adjoining landowner must first be obtained.
The responsibility for meeting any claims for damage to such features lies with the
applicant.

Nesting birds and bats, their roosts and their access to these roosts are protected
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Should birds be nesting in the trees
concerned it is recommended that felling/surgery should be carried out between
September and January for further advice contact Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust on
0115 9588248. If bats are present you should contact Natural England on 0300 060
3900.

The use of external lighting (during construction and post construction) should be

page 29



appropriate  to avoid adverse impacts on bat populations, see
https://www.bats.org.uk/news/2018/09/new-quidance-on-bats-and-lighting for advice
and a wildlife sensitive lighting scheme should be developed and implemented.

Please be advised that all applications approved on or after the 7th October 2019
may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The Borough Council
considers that the approved development may be CIL liable, as the additional
floorspace being created is above the relevant thresholds. Further information about
CIL can be  found on the Borough Council's  website at
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/planningandgrowth/cil/.

page 30


https://www.bats.org.uk/news/2018/09/new-guidance-on-bats-and-lighting

1< abed

Planning Ref: Address Proposal or Breach | Appeal Decision Type Planning Inspectorate Comments/Decision

and link to Appeal Decision Reference Date

decision notice

21/02761/FUL Land To South Of 5To 7 | Erection of new Dismissed Delegated APP/P3040/W/22/3303345 | 05/12/2022
Nottingham Road two storey
Cropwell Bishop dwelling.

22/00515/FUL Land North of Erection of 2 storey | Dismissed Delegated APP/P3040/W/22/3302970 | 19/12/2022
Greystones, Station residential annex to Costs Application also
Road, Elton land north of Grey refused.

Stones
21/02379/FUL Melton Court, 7 Melton Erection of 1 x 2- Dismissed Non Determination | APP/P3040/W/22/3301568 | 22/12/2022

Road, West Bridgford

bedroomed
apartment,
(Resubmission of
21/02262/FUL),
Land Rear of 7
Melton Road, West
Bridgford,
Nottinghamshire

This appeal is for non
determination within
8 weeks

G way| epuaby



https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R0ULY9NLHH900
https://planningon-line.rushcliffe.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R8Q0QMNLJEP00

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 January 2023
	4 Planning Applications
	Tacet House, Hickling Lane, Upper Broughton
	20 03289 FUL - Tacet House

	5 Planning Appeals

